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Office of the Secretary, USDA § 3.91 

550, subpart K) and regulations in this 
subpart governing the collection of a 
debt by salary offset.

Subpart D—Cooperation with the 
Internal Revenue Service

AUTHORITY: 26 U.S.C. 61, 31 U.S.C. 3720A, I 
TFRM 4055.50.

§ 3.81 Reporting discharged debts to 
the Internal Revenue Service. 

When the Department discharges a 
debt for less than the full value of the 
indebtedness it will report the out-
standing balance discharged, not in-
cluding interest, to the Internal Rev-
enue Service, using IRS Form 1099–G or 
any other form prescribed by the Serv-
ice, when: 

(a) The principal amount of the debt 
not in dispute is $600 or more; and 

(b) The obligation has not been dis-
charged in a bankruptcy proceeding; 
and 

(c) The obligation is no longer col-
lectible either because the time limit 
in the applicable statute for enforcing 
collection expired during the tax year, 
or because during the year a formal 
compromise agreement was reached in 
which the debtor was legally dis-
charged of all or a portion of the obli-
gation. 

[50 FR 7726, Feb. 26, 1985]

§ 3.82 Offset against tax refunds. 
The Department will take action to 

effect administrative offset against tax 
refunds due to debtors under 26 U.S.C. 
6402, in accordance with the provisions 
of 31 U.S.C. 3720A and Treasury Depart-
ment regulations. 

[50 FR 7726, Feb. 26, 1985]

Subpart E—Adjusted Civil 
Monetary Penalties

AUTHORITY: 28 U.S.C. 2461 note.

§ 3.91 Adjusted civil monetary pen-
alties. 

(a) In general. The Secretary will ad-
just the civil monetary penalties, list-
ed in paragraph (b), to take account of 
inflation at least once every 4 years as 
required by the Federal Civil Penalties 

Inflation Adjustment Act of 1990 (Pub. 
L. No. 101–410), as amended by the Debt 
Collection Improvement Act of 1996 
(Pub. L. No. 104–134). 

(b) Penalties—(1) Agricultural Mar-
keting Service. (i) Civil penalty for im-
proper pesticide recordkeeping, codi-
fied at 7 U.S.C. 136i–1(d), has: 

(A) A maximum of $550 in the case of 
the first offense, and 

(B) A minimum of $1,100 in the case 
of subsequent offenses unless the Sec-
retary determines that the person 
made a good faith effort to comply. 

(ii) Civil penalty for a violation of 
unfair conduct rule under the Perish-
able Agricultural Commodities Act, in 
lieu of license revocation or suspen-
sion, codified at 7 U.S.C. 499b(5), has a 
maximum of $2,200. 

(iii) Civil penalty for a violation of 
the licensing requirements under the 
Perishable Agricultural Commodities 
Act, codified at 7 U.S.C. 499c(a), has— 

(A) A maximum of $1,000 for each 
such offense and not more than $250 for 
each day it continues; or 

(B) A maximum of $250 for each such 
offense if the Secretary determines the 
violation was not willful. 

(iv) Civil penalty in lieu of license 
suspension under the Perishable Agri-
cultural Commodities Act, codified at 7 
U.S.C. 499h(e), has a maximum of $2,000 
for each violative transaction or each 
day the violation continues. 

(v) Civil penalty for a violation of 
Export Apple and Pear Act, codified at 
7 U.S.C. 586, has a minimum of $110 and 
a maximum of $11,000. 

(vi) Civil penalty for a violation of 
the Export Grape and Plum Act, codi-
fied at 7 U.S.C. 596, has a minimum of 
$110 and a maximum of $11,000. 

(vii) Civil penalty for a violation of 
an order issued by the Secretary, under 
the Agricultural Marketing Agreement 
Act of 1937, codified at 7 U.S.C. 
608c(14)(B), has a maximum of $1,100. 

(viii) Civil penalty for failing to file 
certain reports under the Agricultural 
Marketing Agreement Act of 1937, codi-
fied at 7 U.S.C. 610(c), has a maximum 
civil penalty of $110. 

(ix) Civil penalty for a violation of 
seed program under the Federal Seed 
Act, codified at 7 U.S.C. 1596(b), has a 
minimum civil penalty of $27.50 and a 
maximum of $550. 
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